
Meeting 
of the 

Iron Range Resources Board 
 
 

Thursday, August 18, 2005 
5:00 p.m. 

Iron Range Resources Administration Building 
Eveleth, Minnesota



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 2 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Thursday, August 18, 2005 

5:00 p.m. 
Iron Range Resources Administration Building 

Eveleth, Minnesota 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Agenda ............................................................................................................................................ 3 

Approval of the June 16, 2005, Minutes ......................................................................................... 4 

Bonding for School Health, Safety & Maintenance Improvements ............................................. 10 

Board Account .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Douglas J Johnson Trust Fund Investment Policy ........................................................................ 13 

FY06 Investment Plan................................................................................................................... 14 

 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 3 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Thursday, August 18, 2005 

5:00 p.m. 
Iron Range Resources Administration Building 

Eveleth, Minnesota 
 

Agenda 
 
1) Roll Call 
 
2) Approval of the June 16, 2005, Minutes 
 
3) Bonding for School Health, Safety & Maintenance Improvements 
 
4) Board Account 

Action required:  Project approval requires 7 votes 
a)  Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Speculative Building Project 

 
5) Douglas J Johnson Trust Fund Investment Policy 
 
6) FY06 Investment Plan 

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 
 
7) Board Appointment to Ironworld Development Corporation Board 
 
8) Adjournment 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 4 

Approval of the June 16, 2005, Minutes 
 

Meeting of the 
Iron Range Resources Board 

 
Thursday, June 16, 2005 

8:30 a.m. 
Room 318 – State Capitol 

St. Paul, Minnesota 
 

I. Roll Call 
 
Senator David Tomassoni, Chair, called the meeting to order at approximately 8:31 a.m.  
Present:  Representative Maxine Penas; Representative Tom Rukavina; Representative Tony 
Sertich; Representative Loren Solberg; Senator Tom Bakk; Senator Tom Saxhaug; Senator 
Yvonne Prettner Solon; Citizen Joe Begich; Citizen Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich.  
Absent: Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey.  Also present were:  Sandy 
Layman, Commissioner; Brian Hiti, Deputy Commissioner; Gunnar Johnson, Assistant Attorney 
General; Matt Sjoberg, Interim Development Strategies Director; Jean Dolensek, Administrative 
Services Director; Linda Johnson, Director – Giants Ridge; Marianne Bouska, Director – 
Ironworld Discovery Center; David Hart, Loan Officer, Senior; Sheryl Kochevar, Executive 
Assistant; Patricia Steger Holmberg, Owner, Steger Designs, Inc.; and Dr. Richard Dinter, 
University Medical Center Mesabi. 
 
II. Approval of the April 21, 2005, Minutes 
 
Representative Penas moved approval of the April 21, 2005, minutes.  Motion carried. 
 
III. Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 

Action Required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 
 
 a.  Steger Designs, Inc.  
 
Motion by Senator Bakk to approve the Steger Designs, Inc. project as presented.  Seconded by 
Citizen Matasich.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Project:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom 
Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen 
Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Project:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 5 

 
b.  U.S. Department of Agriculture, Rural Development – Intermediary Relending 

Program 
 
Motion by Representative Sertich to approve the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Rural 
Development – Intermediary Relending Program project as presented.  Seconded by Senator 
Solon.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Project:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom 
Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen 
Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Project:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey.   
 
IV. Board Account 

Action Required:  Project approval requires 7 votes 
 
 a.  Healthcare Capital Projects 
  
Motion by Representative Rukavina to amend the Healthcare Capital Projects by increasing the 
grant amount from $50,000 to $100,000 for both the Cook Hospital and White Community 
Hospital.  Motion carried.   
 
Voting in Favor of the Amendment:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom 
Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, 
Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe 
Begich, Citizen Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Amendment:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey. 
 
Motion by Representative Sertich to approve the Healthcare Capital Projects as presented and 
amended.  Seconded by Senator Prettner Solon.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Project:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom 
Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen 
Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 6 

 
Voting Against the Project:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey. 
 
 b.  Ely Municipal Airport Expansion  
  
Motion by Senator Bakk to approve the Ely Municipal Airport Expansion project as presented.  
Seconded by Citizen Henning.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Project:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom 
Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen 
Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Project:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey. 
 
V.  FY06 Early Retirement Resolution 
 
Motion by Representative Solberg to amend Resolution No.: FY05-004 - FY06 Early Separation 
Incentive Program to include that any lump sum salary cash payment as part of the Program will 
be based on the employee’s FY2005 salary level.  Motion carried.   
 
Voting in Favor of the Amendment:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom 
Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, 
Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe 
Begich, Citizen Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Amended:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey. 
 
Motion by Representative Solberg to approve Resolution No.:  FY05-004 - FY06 Early 
Separation Incentive Program as presented and amended.  Seconded by Representative Sertich.  
Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Resolution:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom 
Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 7 

Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe 
Begich, Citizen Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Resolution:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey.   
 
 IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 
 OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
Resolution No.: FY05-004 
 
WHEREAS, Laws of Minnesota for 2005, Chapter 156, Article 2, Section 34, contains 
provisions authorizing the Commissioner of Iron Range Resources (“Commissioner”), in 
consultation with the State’s Commissioner of Employee Relations, to offer a targeted early 
separation incentive program (the “Program”) for employees of the Commissioner who have 
attained the age of 60 years and have at least five years of allowable service credit under 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 352, or who have received credit for at least 30 years of allowable 
service under the provisions of the said Chapter 352; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner has requested the Board to approve the expenditure of up to 
$881,000 of the funds made available to the Commissioner under the provisions of Minnesota 
Statutes Section 298.223 (“TEPF Monies”) in State Fiscal Year 2006 (FY06) to provide funding 
with which to implement the said Program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on Thursday, June 16, 2005, the Board met in a regular session at the State Capitol 
in St. Paul to consider the request of the Commissioner for approval to expend the said TEPF 
Monies to provide the funds with which to implement the said Program; and, 
 
WHEREAS on the basis of the materials submitted by the Commissioner and the discussions at 
the said public meeting, the Board has concluded that it would be in the best interests of the 
Taconite Assistance Area defined in Minnesota Statutes Section 297.1341 (“TAA”) and in 
furtherance of the purposes specified in Laws of Minnesota for 2005, Chapter 156, Article 2, 
Section 34 and in Minnesota Statutes Section 298.223 to use the said TEPF Monies to implement 
the said Program on the terms and conditions proposed by the Commissioner. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

a. The Board hereby concludes that the proposed expenditure of $881,000 of TEPF 
Monies is for a purpose authorized in Laws of Minnesota for 2005, Chapter 156, 
Article 2, Section 34 and in Minnesota Statutes Section 298.223, and is in the best 
interests of the TAA; and,  

b. The Board hereby authorizes, pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 
Section 298.223 and Laws of Minnesota for 2005, Chapter 156, Article 2, Section 34, 
the expenditure by the Commissioner of up to $881,000 of such TEPF Monies to fund 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 8 

the Commissioner’s proposed Program to offer, in accordance with the provisions of 
Laws of Minnesota for 2005, Chapter 156, Article 2, Section 34, targeted early 
separation incentives to certain employees of the Commissioner who have attained 
the age of 60 years and have at least five years of allowable service credit under 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 352, or who have received credit for at least 30 years of 
allowable service under the provisions of the said Chapter 352. 

c. Any lump sum salary cash payment as part of the Program will be based on the 
employee’s FY2005 salary level.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND 
REHABILITATION BOARD THIS 16th DAY OF JUNE, 2005 
 
AYES:  11 
NAYS:  0 
ABSTENTIONS:  0 
ABSENT:  2     Signed:______________________ 
       Senator David Tomassoni 
       Chair of the Board 
 
VI. FY06 Investment Plan 
 
Motion by Representative Rukavina that if an Iron Range Resources FY2006 budget is not 
approved by the Iron Range Resources Board by June 30, 2005, the current FY2005 budget 
allocations will remain in place for FY2006 until a FY2006 Iron Range Resources budget is 
approved by the Iron Range Resources Board.  Seconded by Senator Bakk.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Representative Maxine Penas, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom 
Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen 
Bill Henning and Citizen Matt Matasich. 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None. 
 
Abstain:  None. 
 
Absent:  Representative David Dill and Senator Becky Lourey. 

 
IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 

FY2006 Interim Budget Motion 
 

Motion No:  FY05-01 
 
IT IS HEREBY MOVED THAT:  If an Iron Range Resources FY2006 budget is not approved 
by the Iron Range Resources Board by June 30, 2005, the current FY2005 budget allocations 
will remain in place for FY2006 until a FY2006 Iron Range Resources budget is approved by the 
Iron Range Resources Board. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 9 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
THIS 16th DAY OF JUNE, 2005. 
 
AYES:  11 
NAYS:  0 
ABSTENTIONS:  0 
ABSENT:  2     Signed:______________________ 
       Senator David Tomassoni 
       Chair of the Board 

 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:45 a.m. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 10 

Bonding for School Health, Safety & Maintenance 
Improvements 

 
House File No. 2498 – 84th Legislative Session (2005-2006) 
 
Sec. 39.  [IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION  
 32.14  COMMISSIONER; BONDS AUTHORIZED.]  
 32.15     Subdivision 1.  [ISSUANCE; PURPOSE.] Notwithstanding any  
 32.16  provision of Minnesota Statutes, chapter 298, to the contrary,  
 32.17  the commissioner of Iron Range resources and rehabilitation may  
 32.18  issue revenue bonds in a principal amount of $15,000,000 in one  
 32.19  or more series, and bonds to refund those bonds.  The proceeds  
 32.20  of the bonds must be used to make grants to school districts  
 32.21  located in the taconite tax relief area defined in Minnesota  
 32.22  Statutes, section 273.134, or the taconite assistance area  
 32.23  defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 273.1341, to be used by  
 32.24  the school districts to pay for health, safety, and maintenance  
 32.25  improvements but only if the school district has levied the  
 32.26  maximum amount allowable under law for those purposes.  
 32.27     Subd. 2.  [APPROPRIATION.] There is annually appropriated  
 32.28  from the distribution of taconite production tax revenues to the  
 32.29  taconite environmental protection fund pursuant to Minnesota  
 32.30  Statutes, section 298.28, subdivision 11, and to the Douglas J.  
 32.31  Johnson economic protection trust pursuant to Minnesota  
 32.32  Statutes, section 298.28, subdivisions 9 and 11, in equal  
 32.33  shares, an amount sufficient to pay when due the principal and  
 32.34  interest on the bonds issued pursuant to subdivision 1.  If the  
 32.35  annual distribution to the Douglas J. Johnson economic  
 32.36  protection trust is insufficient to pay its share after  
 33.1   fulfilling any obligations of the trust under Minnesota  
 33.2   Statutes, section 298.225 or 298.293, the deficiency is  
 33.3   appropriated from the taconite environmental protection fund.   
 33.4   The appropriation under this subdivision terminates upon payment  
 33.5   or maturity of the last of the bonds issued under this section.  
 33.6      Subd. 3.  [CREDIT ENHANCEMENT.] The bonds issued under this  
 33.7   section are "debt obligations" and the commissioner of Iron  
 33.8   Range resources and rehabilitation is a "district" for purposes  
 33.9   of Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.55, provided that advances  
 33.10  made under Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.55, subdivision 2,  
 33.11  are not subject to Minnesota Statutes, section 126C.55,  
 33.12  subdivisions 4 to 7.   
 33.13     [EFFECTIVE DATE.] This section is effective the day  
 33.14  following final enactment. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 11 

Board Account 
 

Action required:  Project approval requires 7 Votes  
 

a)  Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Speculative Building Project 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 12 

 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Iron Range Resources Board Members 
  
 
From: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
Date: August 18, 2005 
 
Re: Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Speculative Building Project 
 
 
 
The Hibbing EDA, the Chisholm EDA and the Airport Authority have formed a partnership in support of 
the construction of a Speculative Industrial Building adjacent to the Chisholm-Hibbing Airport.  Although 
there are a few vacant commercial buildings in the area, none are well-suited for industrial/manufacturing 
use, nor are they located in areas that are conducive for a manufacturing operation.   
 
The total estimated cost of the completed 30,000 square foot building is $1,640,000.  The airport is 
donating the land (valued at $50,000) and the partners have committed to finance the estimated $800,000 
to fund the build-out.  The Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authority has applied to Iron Range Resources for 
a $790,000 non-recourse loan to construct the building shell.  The proposed loan would be repaid over 20 
years with net rents – rents less eligible expenses including repayment of any debt issued for the build-out 
– generated by the new building.   
 
My recommendation is to provide a $790,000 non-recourse loan out of the Board Account at the direct 
loan formula rate for the construction of this building. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 13 

Douglas J Johnson Trust Fund Investment Policy 
 
Purpose 
This policy sets forth guidelines for the investment and management of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic 
Protection Fund (“DJJ Trust”) monies. 
 
Overview of DJJ Trust 
Fair market value (FMV) of the DJJ Trust at December 31, 2004: 
 Approximate FMV Asset % 
Unobligated Cash $45,771,000 47% 
Stock Fund 25,564,000 26% 
Bond Fund  25,743,000 27% 
Total $97,078,000 100% 
 
Investment Objectives 
The DJJ Trust will be managed to achieve the following investment objectives: 
1. Conformance to Minnesota Statute – The DJJ Trust is invested in accordance with M.S. § 298.294. 
2. Preservation of Principal – The primary objective is the preservation of DJJ Trust principal.  
3. Maintenance of Liquidity – The DJJ Trust cash balance will be maintained within the ranges set forth 

below to assure that sufficient funds are available to meet the ongoing economic development project 
requirements of Iron Range Resources. 

4. Maximize Return – The DJJ Trust will be managed to provide the highest available return for the level 
of risk taken. 

 
Investment Decisions 
Investment decisions regarding the asset allocation of the DJJ Trust investment portfolio will be based on 
projected cash needs for economic development projects and financial market conditions.  Changes to the 
asset allocation of the investment portfolio will be made in the first quarter of each calendar year in 
conjunction with agency budget development.   
 
Responsibilities 
The State Board of Investment is responsible for the prudent investment of the DJJ Trust stock and bond 
fund holdings.  Iron Range Resources Administrative Services Director will: 1) monitor investment 
performance; 2) provide quarterly reports to the Commissioner; and 3) review and make 
recommendations to the Commissioner regarding the asset allocation of the DJJ Trust. 
 
Asset Allocation Ranges 
The asset allocation structure of the DJJ Trust will be maintained within the following ranges: 
 Min Max 
Cash 40% 60% 
Stock Fund 15% 35% 
Bond Fund 15% 35% 
 
Asset Re-Balancing 
The stock and bond fund holdings will be re-balanced on a quarterly basis if necessary to remain within 
the asset allocation ranges.  If practical, securities will be sold and purchased to achieve the appropriate 
re-balance. 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
August 18, 2005 

Page 14 

FY06 Investment Plan 
 

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 Votes  
 

Please see attached FY06 Investment Plan and Narrative 
 




















































































	20050818BoardPacket.pdf
	Iron Range Resources Administration Building
	Agenda
	Approval of the June 16, 2005, Minutes
	Bonding for School Health, Safety & Maintenance Improvements
	Board Account
	Douglas J Johnson Trust Fund Investment Policy
	FY06 Investment Plan


